
 

 1

Ryan White Planning Council (RWPC) of the Philadelphia Part A EMA 
Joint Meeting of the Comprehensive Planning and Needs Assessment Committees 

Meeting Minutes of  
Wednesday, December 1, 2010 

10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
Office of HIV Planning, 340 N. 12th Street, Suite 203, Philadelphia, PA 19107 

 
Present:  Christine Ambrose, John Churchville (Co-Chair), Karen Coleman, Dawna 
Edwards-Watson, Gerry Keys, Michael Myers, Ann Ricksecker (Co-Chair) 
 
Excused:  Peter Houle, Sandra Thompson 
 
Absent:  Marcelo Fernandez-Viña, Raymond Hayward, Eric Paulukonis, Ronald Sy 
 
Guests:  Jamie Hamilton (AACO), Evelyn Torres (AACO) 
 
Staff:  Debbie Law, Michael Milsop, Briana Morgan, Nishika Vidanage 
 
Call to Order/Introductions: 
J. Churchville called the meeting to order at 10:11 a.m.  Those present then introduced 
themselves. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
J. Churchville presented the agenda for approval.  A. Ricksecker stated that the election of a 
new co-chair ought to be added as an agenda item.  Motion:  A. Ricksecker moved, K. 
Coleman seconded to approve the agenda as amended.  Motion passed:  All in favor.   
 
Approval of Minutes: 
J. Churchville next presented the November 10, 2010 minutes for approval.  K. Coleman 
stated that she had not been present at that meeting, and should have been marked as excused.  
C. Ambrose stated that Kathleen Brady should have been included as a guest at that meeting 
as well.  Motion:  M. Myers moved, C. Ambrose seconded to approve the November 10 
minutes as amended.  Motion passed:  All in favor. 
 
Report of Staff: 
M. Milsop stated that Part B Priority Setting would be taking place at Action AIDS on 
Friday, December 3 from 10:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.  B. Morgan then stated that the Finance 
Committee meeting originally scheduled for the next day had been cancelled. 
 
Report of Co-Chair: 
A. Ricksecker stated that the co-chairs of the committees would be meeting on Thursday, 
November 9th to discuss the results of the RWPC membership survey.  J. Churchville 
encouraged A. Ricksecker to attend this meeting, even though her term as co-chair of the 
Comprehensive Planning Committee was ending. 
 
J. Churchville then stated that the Black Treatment Advocates Network had begun planning 
activities for 2011.  He added that they would be conducting trainings in order to keep the 
community up-to-date and informed.  
 



 

 2

Action Item: 
 Co-Chair Elections 
J. Churchville stated that they would be holding an election for the co-chair of the 
Comprehensive Planning Committee.  He noted that M. Myers was their sole candidate, and 
opened the floor for voting.  Motion passed:  4 in favor, 0 opposed, 0 abstentions.  M. 
Myers stated that he would do his best to follow in the footsteps of their former co-chairs, 
and went on to say that he and J. Churchville would work together as the new co-chairs.  He 
next stated that he planned to ask the former co-chairs for advice on leading the committee.  
He added that he had been very happy with the committee’s progress and work over the five 
years he had been a member of the RWPC.  

 
Discussion Items: 
 AACO’s Client Services Unit and Housing Unit 
E. Torres began her presentation by discussing medical case management (see – attached 
slides).  She stated that they reviewed two major performance measures, including retention 
in medical case management eight weeks after intake, as well as retention in HIV medical 
care for those that were retained in medical case management.  She then discussed 
additional performance measures as prescribed by HRSA, noting that the medical case 
management model had been in place in Philadelphia for just over a year.  She explained 
that they also reviewed data on oral health visits, two CD4 counts at least three months 
apart, two viral loads at least three months apart, cervical cancer screening, and 
documentation of HIV medications.  K. Coleman asked what data is collected in regards to 
oral health care.  E. Torres replied that case managers are asked to document a client’s 
number of oral health care appointments.  J. Churchville asked what “HAB” stood for.  E. 
Torres replied that “HAB” is the HIV/AIDS Bureau, which is the part of HRSA that 
administers Ryan White.  C. Ambrose asked if the data collected reflected completed dental 
appointments.  E. Torres agreed that the referral should be completed.  G. Keys then asked 
if mammographies are used as a performance measure.  E. Torres replied that they are not, 
explaining that they had chosen cervical screenings as a performance measure because they 
had very low numbers in this area, and they were directly related to HIV.   
 
A. Ricksecker stated that some RWPC members had replied that they do not receive 
information on quality management in the membership survey.  She explained that the 
Comprehensive Planning Committee receives an annual presentation on quality 
management, and it would be important to convey this information to the RWPC.   
 
M. Milsop stated that some jurisdictions had begun providing dental case management, and 
asked E. Torres if this could be helpful in their EMA.  E. Torres replied that this was not 
currently available in the Philadelphia EMA, and she was not sure if they would have the 
resources for that service.  
 
E. Torres then moved on to review the Client Services Unit (CSU).  She explained that 
AACO receives intake data from New Jersey, although New Jersey is not a part of AACO’s 
system.  She moved on to review the CSU’s mission.  She noted that they had originally 
had weekend hours for the hotline, but they had ended these as a cost-saving measure due to 
very, very low utilization.  D. Law asked for more information on New Jersey’s intakes.  E. 
Torres replied that New Jersey does its own intakes, but sends AACO information on these 
intakes so they are able to track them.  D. Law then asked if there had been new trends in 



 

 3

New Jersey referrals.  E. Torres replied that there had been an uptick in calls in New Jersey 
due to the closure of a provider, adding that the transition had gone very smoothly.   
 
E. Torres next discussed case management intakes, including demographic information.  
She noted that the demographics for those coming into case management were in keeping 
with the epidemic.  K. Coleman then asked if the CSU had seen an impact from the policy 
of closing a case once a client seems to be medically stable.  E. Torres replied that this was 
an interesting question, explaining that most clients are hesitant to give up a case manager 
even when they are doing well.  K. Coleman explained that it could become problematic if 
they were repeatedly closing and reopening the same cases. 
 
E. Torres then stated that 87% of clients were below the federal poverty level at intake.  She 
then reviewed insurance status for CSU intakes before discussing the client needs at intake.  
K. Coleman asked if the benefits category would include health insurance.  E. Torres 
replied that health insurance was tracked separately.  She then stated that there were 143 
clients on the CSU waiting list, explaining that social workers contacted those on the 
waiting list monthly in order to address any emergency situations.  She went on to say that 
providers tended to take emergency clients very quickly, noting that this category would 
include homeless clients, as well as those being released from state correctional institutions.  
A. Ricksecker added that clients could now apply for Medicaid before release from prison.  
E. Torres replied that this was a great program, adding that these clients would also be 
released with thirty days of medications.  
 
C. Ambrose asked how long a client could expect to be on the CSU waiting list.  E. Torres 
replied that some clients on the list were waiting to go to a specific agency, but the typical 
wait would be four to six weeks.   
 
E. Torres then reviewed the number of calls received on the hotline, noting that this number 
had decreased steadily.  She also reviewed data on the HIV texting campaign.  A. 
Ricksecker then asked how AACO staff kept their information up to date.  E. Torres replied 
that they have an internal information and referral specialist that gathers data every six 
months.  A. Ricksecker then asked if the CSU hotline would only refer clients to providers 
that are funded by AACO.  E. Torres agreed that this was generally true, but they did 
include shelter systems.  She then reviewed data for information and referral calls, 
including the most frequently referred services in 2010 and demographic information. 
 
Next, J. Hamilton began to review information on the Housing Services Program (HSP), 
including the role of the HSP.  She noted that they currently had eight housing sponsors, 
rather than seven as listed on the slides.  M. Myers asked if they would adjust the number of 
bedrooms for an apartment if the client’s family composition changes.  J. Hamilton replied 
there was a transfer program available for this situation, explaining that they used HOPWA 
standards for the number of bedrooms.  She then stated that there were currently 163 
applicants on the waiting list, including one homeless person.  She went on to say that they 
had expanded the medical criteria over the past month, so clients were now able to apply if 
they have an AIDS diagnosis, meet criteria for SSD, or have had a documented case of oral 
hairy leukoplakia, herpes zoster, or oro-pharyngeal candidiasis within the past six months.  
She also reviewed the HSP criteria and disqualifications as well as the demographics of 
applicants.  
 



 

 4

A. Ricksecker then stated that she was struck by the fact that 37.4% of applicants were 
currently in mental health treatment, and asked if there was a way to provide wraparound 
services in the living arrangement.  J. Hamilton replied that wraparound services were not a 
part of their program, so the case manager would need to address any of these needs.  She 
went on to say that HSP did ensure that any applicants with a mental health diagnosis were 
actively engaged in mental health care.  E. Torres added that they also ensured that 
applicants could live independently.  M. Milsop noted that there was specific funding 
available through COHMAR for PLWA with mental health issues.   
 
A. Ricksecker then stated that she had received an email regarding open housing slots in 
Wilmington, and asked what she should do with this information.  E. Torres replied that 
Delaware was outside of AACO’s service delivery area, so clients could move to 
Wilmington but they would lose their current services.  She went on to say that they were 
looking at ways to distribute more information on non-HIV-specific housing to their case 
managers.  She explained that ACT UP had asked the mayor to support federal funding for 
housing with additional city funds, although it did not seem as though there was additional 
funding available.  She then stated that there were other sources for housing, noting that the 
Philadelphia Housing Authority (PHA) had a total of 30,000 housing slots.  She went on to 
say that ACT UP was also pushing for a housing-first model, adding that this model 
required a great deal of supportive services.  She noted that ACT UP wanted to open the 
housing waiting list to all people living with HIV that were currently on antiretrovirals.  She 
explained that AACO had done an estimate on this, and that this policy could possibly place 
14,000 PLWHA on their waiting list, while they only had 663 housing slots.  She added that 
not all of those 14,000 people would definitely need homes, but that this would be the 
potential pool of applicants.  A. Ricksecker then stated that she was curious about intake 
policies for those with chronic illnesses in non-HIV specific housing. 
 
J. Hamilton then stated that AACO had been making changes to the housing program, 
including the previously mentioned expansion of the medical requirements.  She noted that 
they had also developed a new application.  She went on to say that AACO-funded medical 
case managers were now able to certify that their clients were homeless, so they no longer 
required shelter documentation.   
 
E. Torres then began to review the feedback process.  She stated that there did not seem to 
be a trend in complaints regarding medical case management.  She went on to say that 
complaints included rude case managers, problems with the submission of housing and 
DEFA applications, and DEFA appeals.  She then stated that they had heard complaints that 
some landlords had taken DEFA money from clients and then refused to rent to those 
clients, so AACO had begun a blacklist for those landlords.  She then stated that most 
dental complaints were due to scheduling issues.  M. Milsop noted that there had been a lot 
of complaints regarding dental services in the town halls.  E. Torres then added that 
agencies were required to have an internal grievance process. 
 
Lastly, E. Torres reviewed the Case Management Coordination Project.  She stated that they 
were unable to track any issues with co-pays, although she had had a client call her because 
his deductible was being raised to $4,000.  She went on to say that she had not received any 
calls related to medical transportation services, explaining that any transportation-related 
calls were regarding LogistiCare rather than AACO-funded transportation.  She then stated 
that they also had data available on intakes as a result of the closure of a New Jersey 



 

 5

provider.  C. Ambrose stated that it would be helpful to review gaps in insurance by age, 
gender, and race.  E. Torres agreed to gather this information, as well as data on risk 
category.  C. Ambrose then asked for risk category data by gender. 
 
A. Ricksecker then asked for information about the follow-up process for feedback.  E. 
Torres explained that the process would begin with a client calling to lodge a concern.  She 
noted that the client’s concern would need to be related to current services, and that they 
also as the client to provide an ideal resolution.  She went on to say that they proceed to 
explain whether this resolution would be possible, and then pass this information on to the 
director of the agency.  She explained that the director would then have a conversation 
regarding a potential solution with the program analyst, and this would then be forwarded to 
the program supervisor before she would review it herself.  She noted that the client, 
program analyst, and provider would then be notified of the resolution.  She then explained 
that a potential solution could include staff training and written policies.   
 
M. Myers and J. Churchville then thanked E. Torres and J. Hamilton for their presentation.  
M. Myers next asked if AACO’s HSU would only accept the three previously mentioned 
opportunistic infections for the housing application.   J. Hamilton explained that the Social 
Security Administration (SSA) did not consider these three to be AIDS-defining, so these 
were in addition to the SSA’s guidelines.  

 
Old Business: 
None. 
 
New Business: 
A. Ricksecker stated that it was very helpful to have a joint meeting between the Needs 
Assessment and Comprehensive Planning Committees for these types of presentations, since 
members of each committee would hear the information differently.  She went on to say that 
they had had very stable membership in the Comprehensive Planning Committee, and that 
she was glad to see M. Myers as the new co-chair. 
 
A. Ricksecker then stated that there had been two items mentioned in the current meeting that 
would be important to bring before the co-chair meeting:  bringing quality management data 
to the full RWPC, as well as determining what role the RWPC could play in advocating when 
a voice was needed.  E. Torres replied that advocacy would be very important due to the new 
administration coming into the state government.  She explained that the state was planning 
to make a large cut to its budget.  C. Ambrose then asked if the RWPC would be able to 
advocate in this situation.  A. Ricksecker replied that this would be an important topic for the 
co-chair meeting.  J. Churchville stated that they RWPC would be able to make a statement 
based on any information they gathered.  He went on to say that they had a responsibility to 
do good for the people they represent, though they would need to find a legal way to make 
any statements.  He added that they would be able to make statements as long as they were 
clear on what they were allowed to do, and they were not lobbying.   
 
C. Ambrose then suggested asking Office staff to review what the RWPC would and would 
not be able to do.  A. Ricksecker replied that they should not do this, as the co-chairs meeting 
ought to be a brainstorming session.  She went on to say that they had previously heard a 
suggestion on forming a policy committee from Alan Edelstein.  M. Myers then stated that 
the group had previously discussed the importance of supporting the Positive Committee.  He 



 

 6

explained that it would be important to help give consumers a voice as well as establish a 
plan to help the consumers advocate for themselves.   
 
Announcements: 
D. Edwards-Watson stated that she would be interviewed on Channel 29 as a part of World 
AIDS Day.  J. Churchville then stated that he, D. Edwards, and another colleague had 
reached 400 community members in Germantown through a survey tool, and they were 
currently analyzing the data.  He explained that they were trying to determine how informed 
the community members were about HIV/AIDS, and that they planned to return to give those 
community members additional information based on what they already knew or did not 
know.   
 
Adjournment: 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:25 a.m. by general consensus.   
 
Respectfully Submitted by, 
 
 
Briana L. Morgan, Staff 
 
Handouts distributed at the meeting: 

 Meeting Agenda 
 Meeting Minutes from November 10, 2010 
 Philadelphia Department of Public Health Slides 
 List of Questions for the CSU 
 OHP Calendar 


















































